IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. SC Fifth DCA Case No. 5D01-3560

RAMON ALVEREZ, ET AL.,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR., ATTORNEY GENERAL

JUDY TAYLOR RUSH,
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar No. 0438847
444 Seabreeze Boulevard
Fifth Floor
Daytona Beach, FL 32118
(386) 238-4990 (Phone)
(386) 238-4997 (FAX)

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES iii												
STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS												
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT												
ARGUMENT												
THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE BECAUSE THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL INCORRECTLY HELD THAT A RYCE ACT COMMITMENT PETITION MUST BE SUPPORTED BY AN AFFIDAVIT OR VERIFICATION FROM A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL WHO HAS EVALUATED THE NAMED RESPONDENT, AND THAT HOLDING DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH A PRIOR HOLDING OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL												
CONCLUSION												
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE												
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE												

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Cases:

Alverez v. State, 2003 WL 327500 (Fla. 5 th DCA Feb. 14, 2003)								
<pre>Kephart v. Kearney, 826 So. 2d 517 (Fla. 4th DCA 2002)</pre>								
Melvin v. State, 804 So. 2d 460 (Fla. 2d DCA 2001) 4,5								
Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986)								
Regier v. Kephart, No. SC02-2280								
State v. Peterson, 739 So. 2d 561 (Fla. 1999), cert. denied, 531 U.S. 831 (2000)								
State v. Wolff, 310 So. 2d 729 (Fla. 1975)6								
Other Authorities:								
Art. V, Sec. 3(b)(3), Fla. Const 4								
Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv)								

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This case concerns what is required to support a circuit judge's determination of probable cause to believe that an individual is a sexually violent predator. In the instant case, the Fifth District Court of Appeal noted "[t]he dissonance between the views of these two courts," the Second District Court of Appeal and the Fourth District Court of Appeal, in regard to constitutionally adequate support for a probable cause determination. Alverez v. State, 2003 WL 327500 1 (Fla. 5^{th} DCA Feb. 14, 2003). "[T]he Fourth District rejected the [S]econd District's suggestion that the state attorney could attest to the facts in order to satisfy due process." Id. The Fifth District preferred "the Fourth District's approach, that the evaluation of at least one of the health care professionals, on whose report the court's 'probable cause' decision-making will be based, should be either in affidavit form or verified." Id. at. 2.

In Alverez, several cases were involved. The District Court concluded that "[i]n all of the cases before us, the petitions and the reports of the multi-disciplinary teams have been amended to add an oath, . . . and the amendments appear . . . adequate to cure the formal defects." Id. Therefore, the court denied the petitions. Id.

Petitioner, the State of Florida, filed a Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Honorable Court in the Fifth District Court of Appeal on April 24, 2003 based upon direct and express conflict with another district court of appeal. Pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.120(d), the State's brief on jurisdiction follows.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should accept jurisdiction of this case because there is an express and direct conflict with another district court of appeal on the same question of law.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE BECAUSE THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL INCORRECTLY HELD THAT A RYCE ACT COMMITMENT PETITION MUST BE SUPPORTED BY AN AFFIDAVIT OR VERIFICATION FROM A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL WHO HAS EVALUATED THE NAMED RESPONDENT, AND THAT HOLDING DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH A PRIOR HOLDING OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the instant case, Alverez v. State, 2003 WL 327500 1 (Fla. 5th DCA Feb. 14, 2003), expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in Melvin v. State, 804 So. 2d 460 (Fla. 2d DCA 2001), on the same question of law. The State respectfully contends that the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this case is wrong. Thus, the State asks this Honorable Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), and after briefing on the merits of the issue, to approve the decision reached in Melvin and quash the decision in Alverez.

This Court has jurisdiction under article V, section (3)(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution where a decision of a district court "expressly and directly conflicts" with a decision of this Court or another district court. Such conflict must be express and direct, that is, "it must appear within the

four corners of the majority decision." Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). The State contends that the express and direct conflict between the holding in Melvin and that in Alverez is apparent on the four corners of the decisions.

Moreover, in *Kephart*, the Fourth District certified conflict with *Melvin* because *Melvin* permitted a verified petition by a State Attorney to meet the requirement that the *ex parte* probable cause determination be supported by sworn facts. 826 So. 2d at 518. In *Alverez*, the Fifth District recognized "[t]he dissonance" between the *Melvin* decision and that in *Kephart*. 2003 WL 327500 at 1. The *Alverez* court rejected the *Melvin*

approach and elected to follow "the Fourth District's approach, that the evaluation of at least one of the health care professionals . . . be either in affidavit form or verified."

Id. at 2. Thus, just as the Kephart decision was in conflict with Melvin, so too is the Alverez decision which followed Kephart on the point of dissonance in conflict with Melvin.

The State points out that the Fourth District's Kephart decision is pending in this Court pursuant to the Kephart court's certification of a conflict with Melvin. See Regier v. Kephart, No. SC02-2280. Here, as in Kephart, the State contends that the requirement of an oath is well satisfied by a verified petition, signed by an assistant state attorney prosecuting the civil commitment petition. There are compelling reasons for not requiring that the oath be that of one of the mental health professionals who evaluated the individual. See No. SC02-2280, Initial Brief at 14-28. Moreover, it has long been the law that probable cause determinations may be based on hearsay with no requirement of personal knowledge. See, e.g., State v. Wolff, So. 2d 729, 733 (Fla. 1975)[probable cause for search warrant may be established by reliable hearsay]; State v. Peterson, 739 So. 2d 561, 564-65 (Fla. 1999), cert. denied, 531 U.S. 831 (2000)[personal knowledge of affiant not required in affidavit supporting search warrant].

Due to the importance of the instant issue, this Honorable Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and resolve the direct conflict between the decision below and the holding in *Melvin* that a verified petition signed under oath by the prosecutor is sufficient to satisfy due process requirements in civil commitment proceedings under the *Ryce* Act.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing argument and authority, the State respectfully requests that this Court accept jurisdiction herein.