IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,)	
)	
Petitioner,)	
)	
VS.)	FSC CASE NO
)	
RAMON ALVAREZ, ET AL.,)	FIFTH DCA CASE NO. 5D01-3560
)	
Respondent.)	
)	

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

JOHN M. SELDEN ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 0886841 112 Orange Avenue, Suite A Daytona Beach, Florida 32114 (386) 252-3367 (Phone)

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondents accept the State's presentation of the facts and case, with only the following additions. First, the State does not present the forms of relief requested by either these Respondents or the petitioners in the other pending, consolidated cases. Here, as in Melvin v. State, 804 So. 2d 460 (Fla. 2DCA 2001), and Kephart v. Kearney, 826 So. 2d 517 (Fla. 4DCA 2002), the petitioners originally sought the relief of discharge and release from unlawful confinement pending their commitment trials. The warrants or orders pursuant to which they were detained were not supported by sworn evidence in support of probable cause, and therefore, their detention at that time, and continuing detention was unlawful.

While the <u>Murray</u> court granted this relief, the defects were corrected before individual petitioners were actually released from physical custody. The <u>Kephart</u> court went further, allowing the State an additional period of seven days of unlawful detention in which to correct the defect.

Second, the District Court herein, while agreeing with the <u>Kephart</u> court as to procedural requirements, went beyond the latter court's determination that, in the interests of petitioners' rights against unlawful detention, such corrections should be effected within seven days. The opinion of the Fifth District in the instant matter went further to say that the State could "apply to the trial court for more time in any case where justice requires." (P. 5). Thus, there is discord between these cases with respect to the appropriate remedy and the time frame, if any, during which an individual may be unlawfully detained pending a "re-determination" of probable cause based on sworn information.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The issue presented by the State's brief in support of discretionary jurisdiction is the same issue presently pending before this Honorable Court in Reiger v. Kephart, Case Number SC02-2280. The Court's website information shows that case as having been briefed, and oral argument being scheduled for June 5, 2003. Respondents herein acknowledge that the decision resulting from that case will be dispositive of the issue herein.

ARGUMENT

RESPONDENTS LEAVE TO THIS COURT'S DISCRETION WHETHER TO ACCEPT OR DECLINE JURISDICTION, OR WHETHER INSTEAD, TO DEFER A DECISION ON JURISDICTION UNTIL THE RESOLUTION OF THE IDENTICAL QUESTION IN A CASE NOW PENDING BEFORE THIS COURT.

The principal issue in this case is whether a State Attorney's verified petition in a sexually violent predator civil commitment action is sufficient to support an initial, ex parte finding of probable cause, or whether due process requires some affidavit or other sworn information as evidence of probable cause. While the Second District Court allowed for either, the Fourth District, and now the Fifth District in this case, have disagreed with the former verified petition, calling instead for the latter requirement of sworn information. This usually comes in the form of an attestation by one or more of the examining mental health professionals that it is their true opinion that the person qualifies for commitment.

The State seeks jurisdiction in order to resolve this question in favor of permitting merely the verified petition. As noted in the Jurisdictional Brief (p. 5), this is the identical issue being argued on June 5, 2003, in <u>Reiger v. Kephart</u>, Case Number SC02-2280. There, the Fourth District did certify direct conflict with the Second District. Here, the Fifth District did not certify conflict, but noted the

dissonance between those cases, and followed the Fourth District, with modification.

Respondents' counsel has read the briefs submitted in Kephart, and believes the issues to be sufficiently identical that the Court's decision in that case will be controlling in this case. Therefore, Respondents leave it to the discretion of this Court whether or not to exercise jurisdiction in this action, or whether to defer a decision on jurisdiction until such time as Kephart is decided. However, should jurisdiction be granted herein, Respondents respectfully request to reserve the right to address all matters arising in the controversy, and particularly the difference in the relief granted by the three Districts. Specifically, the Second District granted petitioners relief, whereas the Fourth and Fifth did not, but chose to allow the State varying time periods in which to present additional, valid evidence in support of a new finding of probable cause.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth herein, Respondents respectfully leave to this Court's discretion whether to accept or decline jurisdiction in this matter, or whether to defer any decision on jurisdiction until such time as a decision is rendered in Reiger v. Kephart, Case Number SC02-2280.